INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2249
INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION
November 9, 1988
MEMORANDUM
T0: Mr. Scott Mr. Brossart . Mrs. Wilson
Mr. Sadler Mr. Christy “Mr. Andrewski
Mr. Woods Ms. Erler Mr. Yoder
Mr. Juricic Mr. Terwilliger Mr. King
FROM: Stephen L. Catronjgfe
Hearings Examiner,
RE: Proposed widening of SR 37. The project is located from CR 110 S

in Mitchell to U.S. 50 W (south of Bedford) in Lawrence County.
Total project length is about 7.17 miles.

Indiana Project: ST-095-3( )

Attached hereto -is a complete copy of the verbatim transcript resulting
from the design public hearing on the subject project, which was held in
Bedford, Indiana, on Thursday, September 15, 1988, at 7:00 p.m. About 140
individuals were present at this hearing function, of whom 6 spoke for the
public record. An informal session lasting from 3:00 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. on the
date of the hearing, which was utilized for the purpose of acquainting inter-
ested persons with the design being considered for the proposed project, was
attended by 30 persons. Related data and other statistics pertaining to this
public hearing function are noted on the cover sheets(s) of said transcript.
Copies of all legals published in local news media pertaining to the public
hearing requirements for this proposed project have been previously forwarded
to you.

It was advertised in local news media over a period of better than thirty
(30) days that this public hearing was going to be held, and that a draft
design study, along with preliminary design plans, and other materials
relative to the proposed project were available for advance public viewing,
inspection, and copying during normal office hours in the following offices:

1. Indiana Department of Highways, Room 1105, Indiana State Office
Building, 100 North Senate Avenue, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249.

2. Mayor's Office, 1102 16th Street, Bedford, Indiana 47421.

3. Road Development Office, IDOH Vincennes District, Vincennes, Indiana
47591. '
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Also advertised was the fact that giveaway sketch maps depicting the
location of the proposed project were on hand and publicly available in either
of the aforementioned offices.

The holding of this hearing, completion of the transcript, and
transmittal of all data herewith, fulfills the requirements of Title 23, U.S.
Code, Federal Road Acts of 1958, and the Indiana Public Involvement/Public
Hearing Procedures for Federal-Aid Project Development approved by the Federal
Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation on January 7, 1985.

It is requested that two (2) copies of the approved design study report
be forwarded this section.

SLC:kIm
Attachments
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CERTIFICATION
OF
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIREMENTS
AND
SOCIO-ECONOMIC-ECOLOGICAL-ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATIONS

Proposed widening of SR 37. The project is located from CR 110 S
in Mitchell to U.S. 50 W (south of Bedford) in Lawrence County.

Total project length is about 7.17 miles.
Indiana Project: ST-095-3( )

The Indiana Department of Highways hereby certifies that a design public hearing
relative to the subject project was held at Bedford, Indiana, on Thursday, Sep-
tember 15, 1988, in compliance with Title 23, Section 128, U.S. Code, Federal
Road Acts of 1958, and the Indiana Public Involvement/Public Hearing Procedures
for Federal-Aid Project Development approved by the Federal Highway
Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation on January 7, 1985.

The Indiana Department of Highways further certifies that the economic and social
effects of the location, its impacts on the environment, and the consistency with
the goals and objectives of urban planning, as has been promulgated by the
community have been considered.
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Stephen L. Catron Linville R, SadTer, Chief
Hearings Examiner Division of Location & Environment
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DESIGN HEARING

SUMMARY

SUBJECT:  Proposed widening of SR 37. The project is located from CR 110 S
in Mitchell to U.S. 50 W (south of Bedford) in Lawrence County.
Total project length is about 7.17 miles.

PROJECT:  ST-095-3( )
LEGAL NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING:

The Bedford Times Mail
Tuesday, August 16, 1988
Tuesday, September 6, 1988

The Mitchell Tribune
Wednesday, August 17, 1988
Wednesday, September 7, 1988

DATE, TIME & PLACE OF HEARING:

Thursday, September 15, 1988

Formal: 7:00 p.m. Informal: 3:00 p.m. to 4:30 p.m.
National Guard Armory Drill Hall

2020 19th Street
Bedford, Indiana 47421

HEARINGS OFFICER:

Teresa Parker-Breach
Division of Public Affairs
Indiana Department of Highways

HEARING PANEL:

Beam, Longest & Neff, Inc.
Robert Fisher, P.E.
Jeffrey Vlack, Environmental Analyst

Indiana Department of Highways
Richard VanCleave, P.E.

Steve Powers, Project Engineer
Randy Compton, Project Designer
Arthur Rhea, Relocation Specialist
Stephen Catron, Hearings Officer

ATTENDANCE : 140
(Informal Session 30)

SPEAKERS OF RECORD: 6
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Ms. Breach:
Good evening. For the record it is now 7:05 and we are gathered at the

Bedford Armory to discuss the proposéd design for widening State Road 37 from

County Road 1000 South in Mitchell, north to U.S. 50 west in Bedford. This

project is about 7.17 miles long. My name is Teresa Parker-Breach and I am
the Hearings Examiner for the Indiana Department of Highways and I will be
conducting this evening's meeting. On page 3 of your handout you will notice
an agenda for this meeting. I am going to make an addition to it. As you can
see we haveAseveral television monitors around the room. We have prepabed a
video for this project and we are going to take a look at it right now. This
video is the very first one we have ever done for a public hearing project, so
it is kind of experimental. We hope to use videos in the future to illustrate
the need for a project and possibly inform people aboutvvarious procedures
that go into the development. Since this a prototype for a video program, we
are going to ask you to help us out. We are going to be passing out some

little comment cards and on those cards we would like, after you have looked
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at the video and perhaps had a chance to listen to the public hearing. We
would like to know what you thought about the video and if there are other
items that maybe we talked about here or that we didn't talk about that you
would like to see on a video that you would think would be real informative
and helpful. Or if you don't think that it served any purpose we would like
to hear that too. What we hear tonight about the video will help us decide to
do with that as a program for the future.

David are you and Todd going to pass those out for me? Thosé cards?
Okay.. When you get done with them, after the meeting. there is a large brown
box over here and it says comments sheets. You can put those cards in them as
well as the comment sheets like this which are also up here, if you would like
to leave them with us tonight. I will go into more about how to use them a
little bit later on. But just put the cards in the box up there before you
leave and that will help us.

Okay, thanks a lot for watching. If you want to take a minute and jot
down your impression of the video I would appreciate it. We will also run it
after the meeting is over with, again, if you want to see it again to see what
you think about it. If you were here this afternoon you probably noticed that
we were also running continuously some footage of the entire project that was
shot from a helicopter. We did get some positive responses on that if you saw
it. We were also running it as people came in. If you saw and you liked it
let us know about that too, it is something else that we could use the videos
for, to help show the whole project area and the actual traffic on it and that
kind of thing.

Now we are going to get back to the order listed on the agenda. On
tonights hearing panel, we have professional engineer Robert Fisher and

environmental analyst Jeff Vlach from the engineering consultant firm Beam,
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Longest and Neff, Inc., they designed the project for us. We have repre-
senting the Indiana Department of Highways Division of Design professional
engineer Richard VanCleave. Also representing the State Highway Department is
relocation specialist Arthur Rhea and Hearings Officer Steve Catron. With us
this evening from business services division of Video or, I don't know how to
say this, Division of Business Services, I know that it is Business Services
I just don't Know what they call your section, but they take all of these nice
photographs. We have Todd Glenn and David Copenhaver in the back of the
room. We also have Steve Powers in our audience tonight. He is an engineer
who will be available to answer any questions after the meeting that you need
and also from Beam, Longest and Neff we have project designer Randy Compton
also seated in the back of the room. We will all be available here this
evening afterwards to try and answer questions and he1p ydu within our
particular fields.

The purpose of this public hearing is to allow you to comment or ask
questions about the proposed design of this project. Legal notice of this
hearing was published on both August 16th and September 6th in the Bedford
Times-Mail and on August 17th and September 7th in the Mitchell Tribune. This
hearing is being recorded and a transcript will be made from that recording.
A]]-comments tonight will appear in that transcript and will be addressed in
the final design study report. Additionally, we will be accepting writ;en
comments until September 30, 1988. That is the end of this month. Those
comments cén be sent in on that comment sheet that I showed you a little while
ago. It is self addressed on the back. It is a tri-fold mailer just for your
convenience. If you want to pick one up and take it home, all you have to do
is write on it and fold it over and put a stamp on it and it will get back to

us. If you know of anyone who couldn't be here this evening that wanted to
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and might be interested in commenting, you can take them a copy of the comment
sheet and of the fact sheet that was handed out a 1ittle bit earlier. You
don't have to use these if you have information that won't fit on this and you
want to use your own envelope and your own materials that is fine too. It is
just to make life easier. .

The draft design study report, the environmental data, plans and other
information relative to this project are available here tonight along the back
of the wall and the other information is up here in my folder. We also have
that information available to you at the Mayor's office in Bedford and at the
Vincennes District Development office as well as in our office at Room 1105,
100 North Senate Avenue, in Indianapolis. That information will remain
available there for you until we have an approved design on this project.
When we have the transcript completed we will also put that in those offices
for you to review at your convenience. |

[ am going to talk a 1ittle about what has transpired up to this point in
the development of this project. Now on February 2, 1984, we held a public
information meefing in Mitchell to discuss this proposed project. After we
held that meeting we went back and developed some corridors and came back on
November 29, 1984 also in Mitchell and talked about the options of a corridor,
the place to actually locate this roéd. Whether or not we wanted to stay
exactly on the same alignment, vary it somewhat or what. We took that in-
formation énd it helped us to come up with the corridor that we have selected.
That is as seen on these plans, which is pretty much following the existing
roadway, but it does vary é little bit and takes right-of—way from one side or
the other to help widen it out. That is right isn't it Bob? You are looking
at me funny. Okay.

At the corridor hearing we discussed in some depth the environmental
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studies. We actually discussed them very throughly that evening. Therefore
we are not going to be having any in-depth discussion on that tonight. 1If you
want to talk about that, you want to look at what we found out and you weren't
available for the meetings, we have the environmental data here and Jeff
Vlach, who is an environmental analyst, is here to talk to you about it and
answer any questions. But, we will not go into that in the formal portion of
the hearing since we have already discussed it once.

Although we originally funded this project with a combination of Federal
and State funds, and we had it scheduled very far into the future, not iﬁ the
foreseeable future any way. However, action taken by our .1988 legistature
resulted in an influx of funds into the Highway Department and it allowed us
to select a group of projects around the state that we felt would be most
beneficial and definitely most needed by the community that they served. This
. project is one of those. It is on the accelerated construction effort list.
That is the name of the list that was complied as a result of it. We will be
using 100 percent state funds to construct it. We were able to move that up
on the scheduling list. We believe that we will have it ready to go to con-
struction in 1991. Whether or not it happens will depend on the availability
of the funds at that time. I am sure that you are aware that we have to go
from year to year to see what we have from the legislature and from the
federal government though this is 100% State funds but from the legislature
because that can change. We can get more or we can get less. But this is how
we plan it right now and how we foresee it coming in and we really beljeve
that it can happen in that time frame.

In 1988 dollars, this project is going to cost approximately 11 million

dollars, a little bit over 11 million dollars, and that is all in your fact

sheet. You will also notice that there is a 1993 estimate given. That is to
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show you the kind of inflation you can expect as a result of delay in that,
for every year that is over a million and a half dollars more. So, that just
shows you that as we go toward construction, inflation will cause the cost of
the project to'rise‘somewhat.

I am going to just talk a little bit about what it is going to look like
and then Mr. Fisher will go into that in a lot of depth a 1little later. The
proposed project, as I said, begins at County Road 1000" South and continues
north to U.S. 50 West. The roadway is p]anned to consist of four 12-foot
travel lanes bordered by 11-foot shoulders and will either have a center turn
lane or a grass median. Depending on where you are located at in the
project. To accomplish this widening, we will need approximately 91.5 acres
of new permanent right-of-way. This will include about 28 residences, 5
businesses, and please note that your handouts say 4 but we went over it this
afternoon and counted one more in that we hadn't been aware of. Well actually
we had it in there but we didn't have it in the total count. It was mentioned
in our environmental. That includes two trailers, the Marion Township Fire
Department, 10 garages and sheds and 14 signs. We will also need about
another 3.2 acres in temporary right-of-way and that is for driveway
constructions, slope work and that type of thing and all of that will return
back to the original property owner when we are finished with construction.

Now Mr. Fisher is going to give a presentation in just a few minutes.
But T would like to take an opportunity to allow people who cannot stay for
the entire meeting to comment on the project. This opportunity will be for
anyone who has personal commitment or some other problem and can't stay for
the description. I encourage you to, if you can, because you are going to
find out things, I think, that will answer a lot of questions as we go through

it, and we will also allow an ample opportunity after the project description
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and discussion of relocation benefits for anyone to talk. But if you can't
stay for the entire project, please step to the microphone at this time.
(pause) Okay. I guess we sill get started with it then. Mr. Fisher will you
come up and take over.

Mr. Fisher:

" Thank you, Ms. Breach. In an effort to clarify this and simpiify this, I
am going to read most of my description from the handouts that are available
here, so you can follow along.

The proposed widening of State Road 37 begins at County Road 1000 South
in the town of Mitchell and continues northward for approximately 7.17 miles
to U.S. 50 west, just south of the city of Bedford.

The purpose of this project is to provide a modern highway that will
efficiently and safely serve the transportation needs of south-central
Indiana.

Built in the early 1950's, this highway has had steadily increasing
problems handling traffic. As the population of Lawrence County grew, so did
the number of vehicles trying to use State Road 37. This has generated safety
problems and congestion, resulting in an increase in accidents, decreased
transportation efficiency and a general adverse impact on the economic growth
of the area. The existing roadway is insufficient to carry both current and
the projected volumes of traffic. The majority of the existing roadway con-
sists of two 11-foot travel lanes bordered by deteriorating 4 to 6-foot wide
shoulders composed of deteriorated bituminous material and stone.

In 1986 the (ADT) or the Average Daily Traffic on this section of State
Road 37 was 9,100 vehicles per day. That figure is anticipated to increase to
12, 586 vehicles per day by the year 2006. Additionally, the 1984 Environ-

mental Assessment indicates that the sufficiency rating of the project was
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only 48 - 52 out of a possible score of 100. The low rating was attributed to
a capacity deficiency. The.highway is simply not capable of handling the
amount of traffic that is using it.

Much of the existing State Road 37 was designed and built in the late
1940's and the early 1956'5. Much of the new State Road 37 in this area was
constructed on the alignment of the old State Road 37. However, a great deal
of attention was given to improving the sight-distance problems experienced on
the old roadway by straightening the new road as ﬁuch as possible. One
portion of the old roadway ran through the town of Mitchell. The new State
Road 37 , that was built in the 1950's, was constructed on a long, gradual
curve to bypass the urban area.

The proposed alternate that we are Tooking to build, I would like to
describe it just briefly here. Although several options were initially looked
at, Alternate C has been found to be the most feasible. As proposed, the
roadway will be widened to four 12-foot travel Jlanes with 11-foot paved
shoulders and concrete curb and gutters from the southern end of the project
and will continue northward for about 344 feet. Then, the roadway will be
widened further to include a 16-foot paved flush median. This median will be
used for continuous left turns. This section will continue'northward for
approximately 2.27 miles. At this point the median will begin to transition
from the 16-foot paved lane to a 50-foot wide median. This 50-foot wide
median will be grassed except for the inside shoulders. There will be 4-foot
shoulder on each side of the new roadways. Typically, the roadway will have
four 12-foot driving lanes, a grass median and two l1-foot shoulders, 10-foot
paved on the outside and 4-foot paved on the inside.

You are all familiar with the area more so than I am, so I am not going

to get into much detail about the areas and the specific locations and I will
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try to be brief in my descfiptions. We will provide right-turn lanes for
northbound traffic at State Road 60 East and for both north and $outhbound
traffic at the State Road 60 and Main Street intersection. On the segment of
roadway utilizing the 50-foot median, left turn lanes will be provided at
every crossroad crossing of State Road 37. The centerline of the widened
roadway will shift from the existing centerline and the direction and the
distance of the shift will vary depending on the location.

We are going to close two portions of old State Road 37. This in not
included in your handout. But, old State Road 37 just south of the 700 South,
we are going to provide a cul-de-sac on that portion of the highway and you
will use the 700 South for that portion of the road. Another location at old

State Road 37 north of 600 South, we are also going to provide a cul-de-sac at

that portion of the roadway and to compensate for that traffic, we are going
to make major imp}ovements on County Road 610 South. We are going to direct
the traffic for old State Road 37 to 610 South. This gives a 90 degree
intersection and it gives room to make the weaving movements required -to
continue on and across State Road 37.

The existing bridge over the CSX, wonder what that stands for, Railroad
will be used for the dual northbound lanes of State Road 37. A companion
structure will be built adjacent to the west side of the existing bridge to
accommodate the dual southbound lanes. Construction on the existing bridge
will consist of concrete deck and barrier railing removal and reconstruc-
tion. Like the old bridge, the new structure will consist of 3 spans (60
feet, 72 feet and 60 feet). The minimum vertical clearance of both structures
over the railroad will be 21 feet 8 1/4 inches. The new bridge deck will be
an 8 inch thick concrete slab. The roadway on the bridge will consists of two

12-foot travel lanes in each direction bordered by 10-foot 8-inch shoulders
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and concrete barrier railing. A 16-foot wide median will separate the north
and southbound lanes, and a 1-inch open joint will be used to separate the two
bridges.

Access to the roadway will be partially controlled. Although access
points may be consolidated, all residences and businesses which currently have
access to State Road 37 will continue to havé access to the new dual-lane
facility. The right-of—way will be fenced, except no fences will be
constructed across the residential front yards that are bordering on State
Road 37. Disturbed lawn areas will be sodded and all other areas throughout
will be seeded.

We had some investigation of some noise barriers and we did briefly on
that and we found it to be objectionable, because of various reasons. For
one, they don't blend with the aesthetics of the over all project. It would
require acquisition of additional right-of-way to construct these barriers and
would further compound usual impacts and intrusion on individual properties
and the breaks of the access. So, we haven't made a final decision, but there
will be one made prior to design approval on whether we will construct
barriers.

Traffic on State Road 37 will be maintained during construction. However,
reconstruction of county roads at intersections with State Road 37 will
probably require that these roads be closed to through traffic. The detours
will amount to less than 2 miles additional travel distance for through
traffic,

We did review other alternates and I want to describe very briefly
Alternate A, which is the "Do Nothing" alternate. Under this option no
improvements would be made to State Road 37. Although it would result in no

cost to the state, there would be no improvement to the facility and therefore
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would not satisfy the purpose of this project. However, this alternate will
have to remain available until the design plans have been finalized. .

Alternate B, which was also discarded, was four-lanes with a 50-foot
median throughout. This alternate calls for four 12-foot travel lanes with
11-foot shoulders (10-foot paved) and a 50-foot median for the entire length
of the project. The alignment would flip-flop from side to side of the
existing pavement to use as much of the existing roadway as possible.
However, the clear zone requirements of this project would require that more
homes and businesses be acquired for the project than the other alternates,
therefore this one was discarded.

[ think that ends my description of the project, and as Ms. Breach said,

we will be available after for any individual questions that you might have

here tonight. Thank you.
Ms. Breach:

Thank you. Art Rhea is going to give a preséntatioh of some of the
relocation benefits at this point. "
Mr. Rhea:

Thank you Tracy. If this project advances to the right-of-way ac-
quisition stage, the land acquisition process would begin with the abstracting
of each parcel to determine the legal owners and iaentify the exact property
boundaries. Final right-of-way engineering and right-of-way plans would then
be submitted to the appraisers. Each parcel is inspected and appraised by a
qualified appraiser that would be familiar with the property values in the
area. It will be also reviewed by an equally qualified appraiser to determine
the fair market value. Now the appraiser will offer the owner of the property
the opportunity to accompany the appraiser during the inspection. Now, once

the amount, the fair market value, has been determined an offer to purchase is
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made to the owner in writing. After the offer has been made to purchase, the

relocation program would begin with a relocation specialist making a personal
call to determine the amount of monies due and to assist in finding new living
quarters and business sites. The relocation specialist will explain federal
and state programs and policies, inform and assist in programs with banks and
lending institutions, real estate brokers, rental agencies and any other
financial and social organizations when deemed necessary. Payments are avail-
able to displaced businesses and farms. Such payments inc]ude.reimbursab1e on
an actual reasonable cost or a self move basis, and reimbursehent of related
moving expenses may include expenses‘incurred in searching for a replacement
site, payment for loss of personal property, insurance, and certain storage
costs. An owner of a sign may also be eligible for a rgp]acement site search
payment. A payment in lieu of moving expenses are also available to displaced
businesses, and this payment is based on the average annual net earnings of
the displaced business.

Now the payments -that are available to displaced residential occupants,
may include moving costs that are reimbursable on either an actual cost bases
or according to the schedule that has been determined by the state and the
width of a mobile home. Replacement housing payments are available Fo home
owners to compensate for increased costs in purchasing a comparable replace-
ment dwelling, plus certain-increased interest and closing costs.

Rental assistance payments are available for tenants to assist in meeting
increased costs to rent a comparable replacement housing. Down payment assis-
tant payments are also available to tenants who wish to purchase replacement
housing. Owner occupants may be reimbursed for certain increased interest
costs provided the mortgage on replacement dwelling béars a higher rate of

interest than the mortgage interest rate on the present dwelling. Certain




Page 13

closing costs are payable to reimburse the owner and tenants who purchase.
Actual costs incurred incident to the purchase of a replacement dwelling.
Eligibility for replacement housing payments to owners and tenants depends on
the length of occupancy in the present dwelling. No person shall be displaced

from their residences unless a comparable replacement dwelling is made avail-

able. In the event comparable replacement housing is not available, there are

last resort housing previsions to satisfy such a need.

In all cases, payments will not be made until the displacee has relocated
and has actually purchased and or rented and occupied replacement quarters
which meet decent, safe and sanitqry standards. Keep in mind that it is the
policy of the Indiana Department of Highways that no one shall be required to
move from their dwelling unless a satisfactory replacement housing has been
provided and has been made available to all affected persons regardless of
their race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

When a remainder is left that is considered an uneconomic remnant, then
the state would offer to purchase. At such time a displacee indicates that
they are dissatisfied with a determination as to the eligibility for payment
or with the amount of payment offered under the relocation regulations, they
shall be promply furnished wfth necessary forms and notified of the procedures
to be followed in making an appeal. Any person making an appeal shall be
given full opportunity to be heard. As has been mentioned, the most recent
survey on this project shows that an estimated 28 dwelling, plus 2 mobile
homes affecting 30 families, 14 signs and § businesses, plus the Marion
Township Volunteer Fire Department, may possibly be involved. Contact has
been made with real estate brokers, savings and loans associations and rental
agencies and it has been determined that there is adequate housing as well as

adequate financing for those persons who would be displaced. Although this
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project may be sometime away, it is reasonable to project that the same
conditions that exist today will exist at that time.

A central relocation office for the Indiana Department of Highways is
maintained in the Jackson Bui]ding in Indianapolis, Indiana and the telephone
number is (317) 232-5058 and Ms.lNorma Wilson is the Relocation Manager. As
- this project advances any-questions concerning relocation may be forwarded to
this office.

Now, for tonigﬁts meeting the Land Acquisition division has provided
these two brochures. One is "Relocation and You", and the other is "How Land
is Purchased for Highways". Both of these brochures are readable, concise,
understandable and they do explain briefly some of the benefits that do incur
to those persons that might be displaced. As I have previously mentioned, in
the case of relocation, a relocation specialist will be in touch with the
person to be displaced and an in depth explanation of relocation benefits will
be explained to each and every one.

Now, we will remain in the building after the hearing and so if there are
any questions concerning land acquisition or relocations, we will be more than
glad to entertain those. Thank you.

Ms. Breach:

Thank you Art. This is the point in our program where we open the floor
to comments. Our'standard procedures is, we start with the local officials
and continue on to the persons to‘have éigned the speakers schedule we had
located on this table just prior to the beginning of the hearing and then con-
tinue on to anyone else in the audience who has a comment. This is a format
that we use for the sake of organization, and we will give everyone here who
has a comment, who wants to speak the opportunity to do so. I would like to

point out that the plans that you see are preliminary design plans. Changes
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can be made in them. They are not cast in concrete. We are here to listen to
you and find out what you think about it. We are not here to argue, we will
not argue. We will try to answer every question that we can. We are
basically here to find out what you think about what we are proposing. Now,
do we have local officials in the audience here this evening who would like to
speak? 1 thinkAI noticed several when I came in. Please, did somebody raise
their hand in the back? Please come to the microphone so that we can record
you. They can hear you but the transcriptionist can't and we won't get you on
the record. I am sorry. She will go crazy trying to listen to you to get it

up loud enough to listen to you. This microphone right here.

Mayor Hancock:

First of all I would like to mention that I am the Mayor of Mitchell, the

city of Mitchell not the town of Mitchell. ~ 1 have been there 21 years.
Ms. Breach:
[ am sorry, I apologize.

Mayor Hancock:

I wonder if we could arrange to get a set of plans in Mitchell so people
could see them when they come to my office and ask where the road is going,
which I don't know. Why couldn't we have a set of plans in the city of
Mitchell and so forth like they do in Bedford? (applause)

Ms. Breach:

Can we get a set of plans for him Bob? We have got one here for you and
you can take them with you tonight. Sorry we over looked that. Sir, what is
your name? I don't know the namé of the Mayor of Mitchell, I am sorry.

Mayor Hancock:

Jerry L. Hancock, Sr.




Ms. Breach:

Thank you.Mr. Hancock, Mayor Hancock. I am sorry, you know, I have never
been to Mitchell. I hate to admit that and I am sorry that I overlooked
putting plans there. I won't forget in the fpture. Do we have another
official who would Tike to speak this evening? Please.

Mayor Williams:

[ am John Williams, the Mayor of the city of Bedford and I would like to
speak on behalf of the support of the proposed highway and reconstruction and
renewing of the 4-1ane-highway on past Mitchell to Highway 60. I support it
and I would urge you to expedite it to be built as quickly as possible.

Ms. Breach:

Thank you Mayor Williams. Do we have any other officials this evening?

Please.

Representative Newkirk:

My name is Frank Newkirk and I am the State Representative here. I would
like to thank you for expediting the project as you have. Speeding it up is
very important to us here. It is a very dangerous stretch as you know from

the preliminary studies. The only thing that I would like to add is that I

believe that it is important for the Highway Department through its appraisers

to make reasonable offers at the very beginning to the property owners. By
making unreasonable low offers, I am afraid it would needlessly delay the
project. In the same way, I hope that all the homeowners here will be
reasonable in there expectations, because we will all suffer it through greed
or unreasonable attitude the project is needlessly delayed. Thank you.
Ms. Breach:

Thank you Representative Newkirk. Do we have another official here this

evening? Okay. Then we will continue with our speakers' schedule. We only
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had one speaker who signed our speakers' schedule this evening and that was
Don Casna. Mr. Casna.
Ms. Casna:
I hope everyone can hear me, can you?
Ms. Breach:

Mr. Casna, you can unclip that microphone so that you don't have to bend
over to speak. Right up at the top. Steve will get it for you. That will
make it easier for you.

Mr. Casna:

I have a few pet peeves that I would 1ike to talk about. First of all; 1
am interested in built-in safety in highway 37. That has been that since the
inception of relocation of Highway 37 of my thinking. Rather than take the
average that we have for the 9100 traffic count for 1986. Lets use the
traffic count of 1987. |

[ am from Mitchell, Indiana and I am proud of being from Mitchell. A1l
those people there are dear to me. But one thing that I have in common, I
don't 1like accidents. We need a cloverleaf in Mitchell using a natural
terrain that is available for the people that are crossing from Highway 60
going to downtown Mitchell and also for the people that are going from
downtown Mitchell out Highway 60. |

The traffic count from, we will refer to it as South 60 and North 60.

The combination traffic count on north and southbound there is 11,385 cars in

a 24 hour period. Not only cérs in this count, there are trucks, many
trucks. We have Lehigh (sic) Portland Cement on our east that are expanding
and have been expanding every'day for the last few years. They have to have
rough material coming from the west which constitutes the only way it can get

there is by truck traffic. I have seen myself and can perfectly visuallize 12
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and 14 trucks at a time tied up at the stop light at Highway 60 and 37. Now
we are going to build a 4-lane highway. Sometime in that round trip those
trucks are going to cross a 4-lane highway. Four lanes of traffic, not two
lanes. A stop light is normally set up for a maximum length of 25 seconds in
the State of Indiana. They tell me this afternoon that we are going to have
one stop light. Main Street and Highway 37. We are not going to have a stop
light at South Highway 37 and 60. Those trucks have got to cross there of
their own free will. The number one thing that we have heard about and talked
about and read about is conserving energy. Fuel consuption. When we get that
many trucks from the increased volume of traffic not only hauling the raw
materials to Lehigh (sic) but hauling the raw materials away from Lehigh (sic)
and the expansion of an industrial park in Mitchell and the traffic stop light

operates only 25 seconds and they have got to cross a 4-lane highway. What

are we talking about? Lets look at it 10 years in the future down the road.

How many dollars are we wastfng? How much energy are we wasting? We all know
the cheapest way to build anything is to build it at an inception that we can
foresee the future. We project it here in this article tonight for the year
of 2006 or 2005, I don't recall exactly what it was, but lets just go 5 years
down the road. We are building a"4-1ane highway to increase the flow of
traffic. When we get that 4-lane highway built we are going to have a lot of
traffic because it is going on to Highway 64 down there south. That is what
it is for. Those people from the county line that I have referred to over and
over again from the Lawrence County line to Highway 64 down there, they are
in the dark ages. They need a highway too. But, when we improve this section
of highway it is going to make it more-easy for those people to so south and
we are going to have more traffic, a larger volume of traffic. So, for the

safety of my people, my family especially, I don't 1ike for one of those to be
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hurt and I don't like for one of those to be ‘injured. We have a natural
terrain in Mitchell, Indiana which I happen to own. Some of you say it is
for my own personal gain, but I say that it isn't. I will make this statement
tonight, for those of you who think it is, I will furnish the'right-of-way for
the cloverleaf if the State of Indiana will install it for the people to get
in and out of Mitchell.

Now for the private industry we are going to have to use on this clover
leaf, we are going to have to use part of old State Road 37. I can see those
people now belly-aching because they say it is going to make truck traffic
along my house. I have a description that I will turn into the State Highway,
which 1 had done before when Mr. Fancher was here, but evidently he is no
lTonger with us. any more. He was more interested in one thing and that was his
personal gain. He was padding the books. What I said to Mr. Fancher didn't
reach Mr. Isenbarger as far as my knowledge is known, and I think all of you
people will know what I am taking about, because he is no longer with the
State Department. But what I am saying here tonight, for that 11,385 for the
1987 figures of the traffic between highway South 60 and North 60, I want a
cloverleaf.

Now in the design of this road also I am very partial to a sinkhole,
which is owned by Carpenter Body Works. I see where the State of Indiana has
deleted from purchasing that sinkhole. I as one was blamed at one time for
putting water into the city of Mitchell. Several articles in the paper
appeared and even the city of Mitchell even sued me, to no avail. I had no, I
will rephase that. The interest that I have in that sinkhole, because part of
the property that I own goes into this sinkhole, the drainage does. Not only
that, but it is an underground cavern. If the State of Indiana is going to

use curbs on this four-lane road, from north of Carpenter Body Works down past
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the junction of 60 and they are going to put drainage systems in to where the

water will flow readily and quickly towards this sinkhole. This sinkhole will
accommodate approximately a three inch rain fall within a 6 to an 8 hour
period. At that point we have a three to four acre lake.

Now, they turn the pumps on and they can pump it out into the drainage of
the city of Mitchell, but when this rain falls quick or whenever we get drain-
age off of this 4-lane highway into this sinkhole, immediately they can't pump
it out quick enough because the drains of of the city of Mitchell can't handle
it. Consequently it is going to overflow to the east and people are going to
be mad again. So Tlets stop all of these things before it starts. We know
that the only way to slow down water is thru vegetation. Coming from the sky
we can't help that, when it comes it comes. But we don't want to create a
problem and this is what we are doing by curbs and gutters and culverts. So,
my recommendation is to the State of Indiana if they don't want, if they are
going to use a sinkhole that Carpenter's own, let the State of Indiana buy
that sinkhole.and maintain it, don't put it on an individual corporation.

I am going to submit a plan to you for my cloverleaf, I have submitted
it before and I hope that some of you have it. I don't want to talk too long,
I can talk a long time. But just remember if we don't get a cloverleaf in
Mitchell to handle the traffic going east and west on a major highway across
37. A1l of you have seen out here on west 16th Street and 37. How many‘
people have been killed there? How many people have been killed at Qolitic.
We spent.SSO thousand dollars for a stop light right out here at Sth Street
and got a "T" intersection. A "T" intersection and not cross traffic. They
are expanding at Fayetteville stone quarries. Try to follow one of those
trucks and be the third in line going down 450 and 58 and see how far and how

fast you get across. Am I still on?




Ms. Breach:
Yes, we are trying to monitor you, we are getting some feedback.
Mr. Casna:
Remember, the stop lights are only 25 seconds. We get hot when we have

to wait too long and we have got to cross two lanes. Thank you. (applause)

Ms. Breach:

Thank you Mr. Casna. That concludes the speakers' schedule. If you
would like to speak at this time, please raise you hand and come to the
microphone. We will need for you to state you name for the record. Does
anyone have any other comments or questions right now? Okay. I would like to
remind you that this isn't your only opportunity to speak or to go on the
records. You do have the comments sheets and you will have to September 30 to
submit them to us and they will be just as if you have gotten up and spoken
here tonight. They will appear on the record and in the transcript they will
be addressed exactly the same way. Again, if you know of someone who couldn't
come, please take them some information and take them a comment sheet. We
would like to hear from them too. Just because they were unavailable here
tonight doesn't mean that they have lost their chance to speak.

Also, we have those other brochures up here. Relocation and You,
Planning and Construétion of a State Highway, How Land is Purchased for
Highways. Please help yourself to everything and anything up here on the
table and the brochures and handouts that you see. Ma'am, would you like to
speak? Please come to the microphone.

Mrs. Bryant:

[ just have a question.

Ms. Breach:

Can I have your name please for the transcript?
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Mrs. Bryant:

Helen Bryant.
Ms. Breach:
Browning?
Mrs. Bryant:
Bryant, B-r-y-a-n-t.
Ms. Breach:
Bryant, okay Mrs. Bryant.

Mrs. Bryant:

My question is, is the State sending appraisers around?
Ms. Breach:

Not at this point. They will be sending qualified appraisers, and by
that I mean there will be appraisers who are familiar with the land values in
this area.

Mrs. Bryant:

Then why did I have a guy come to my house and state to me that he was an
appraiser for the State and was Tooking my property over.
Ms. Breach:

For State Road 37?

Mrs. Bryant:

That is right.
Mr. Rhea:

The State has not gotten into the acquisition phase of this project
yet. I don't know who that was that came by your house, but as I state in my
presentation, that when this project goes into the land acquisition stage that
an appraiser will call the property owners, will telephone them to set up an

appointment so that they can inspect your property. They will just not come
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in and knock on the door, they will give a telephone call to you and decide on
a convenient day that they can inspect the property. At that time, as I said,
by law you are allowed to accompany the appraiser as he makes his
inspection. So, no the State does not have appraisers out as yet for the
project.

Mrs. Bryant:

This guy stated that he was the State Appraiser and that he had bheen out
there sneaking around, the way I look at it, on my property before and then he
comes to my door on this particular day and knocks and tells me that he is a
State Appraiser. Before he left he let me know he had been there before
sneaking around.

Ms. Breach:

Ma'am, did he give you a business card or any kind of identification or

something that I can trace when I get back to Indianapolis?

Mrs. Bryant:

No he did not, but he had maps of every thing.
Ms. Breach:
Well, do you remember his name?

Mrs. Bryant:

No. A11'I can tell you is that he is a fast talker.
Ms. Breach: '

The maps are a matter of public record. Anybody can get a copy of them.
Mr. Rhea:

What I might suggest is that you might call the Chief of Land Acquisition
Division, who is Mr. John Brossart, and see if not maybe someone was there on
a field check, you know, it could have been. But they should have shown some

identification that they were representing the State. So if you would call
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Indianapolis and just to verify whether or not. I would suggest to everyone
of you that if anyone comes to your home representing the state, that we do
carry identification cards and we do have business cards. So, if you do have
any question that you might ask to see some identification.

Mrs. Bryant:

How are we going to know if the identification is for real or phony?
Mr. Rhea:

Our identification cards, we do have a photo of the card carrier, the
[.D. Card. There is a photo.
Ms. Breach:

Mrs. Bryant if you would like to write that information down for me
tonight, what he said to you, I will also go back and check and see if .someone
was out there for anything. I will do whatever I can to find out.

Mrs. Bryant:

Okay, thank you.
Ms. Breach:
Please, sir.
Mr. Sochia:
My name is Gary Sochia.
Ms. Breach:
Gary, pardon me, can you spell that?
Mr. Sochia:
S-0-C-H-I-A.
Ms. Breach:

Thank you.

- Mr. Sochia:

I just wanted to say, like this lady, the people kind of want to watch a
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Tittle bit because I had two people come to my house. It was on a Saturday
ear]yvin the morning and they said they were from the State Highway and of
- course I was about half a sleep. It was around 7:30 in the morning and they
wanted to know where my sewer lines ran. Well, I showed them and I stayed
right there with them and I think they were just casing places and I think
that people should be aware. We did get a hold of the local law and we also
contacted the highway department and they didn't have anybody out and neither
did the town. They came in a brown and kind of tanish van. So, just that
people be aware that people may use this as a way of just casing people's
places out. We are new in -the area, you know. Thank you.

Ms. Breach:

[ cannot emphasize enough, ask for I.D. Make sure you see it. You know
you hear about it all the time and people tell you this, but make sure you get
the I.D. and make sure you get a name written down and a business card and a
phone number of the central office.that they can be reached at. Because that
is our way of verifying that these people do work for us. You know, if you
call me I need to have a name. We will leave out a business card and an I.D.
SO you can see it. Also, we have different business cards now then the ones
that Steve and I have, they made prettier designs since we got ours printed.
But, we will 1éave out a copy of what the I.D. looks like so everybody can
Took at it and you will know if it is official or not. Okay. It is going to
be up here on this table so everybody can look at it. Dick, would you like to
add something to this?

Mr. VanCleave:

It is possible if it is during week days, now I don't know about
~weekends, I don't think many State people are working on weekends except on

construction or something of that nature, but there could have been some
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preliminary appraisals or property values that are not the final appraisals by
any means they are just a preliminary appraisals. That might have been, the
lady previously, it might have been one of our appraisers that just comes out
and just looks at them initially to get a rough cost so that we would have
some idea of what funds we would have to invest in the project. That could
possible be, I don't know whether it was, but that might of possibly been who
it was. I don't know about the Saturday, it may have been somebody else, of
course.,

Ms. Breach:

Well, be sure you get that name and that identification, because that
will help us. We do have procedures that they have to follow even to do that
and if théy are not following them we need to know. Okay. Do we have other
comments at this time? Okay, if there are no further comments, thank you very
much Mr. Sochia for you warning and Mrs. Bryant for bring that to our
attention. We will be glad to look into it. We will stay here this evening
as long as necessary to talk to everybody that has a question and try to help
you out. Please feel free to come on up and look at the displays and look at
the design study report and the environmental that we have here and the I.D.
SO you can make sure you know what it looks like. We are going to go a head
and run the video while we are hanging around and we also have an hour long
video that is just an aerial view of the project and we will be running
that. Also, if you wént to look at an aerial v{ew of what your property looks
like. Thank you very---Mr. Cassna?

Mr. Cassna:

Sorry, put when I don't Took at my notes I forget a lot of things. We

have approximately 150 people here iﬁ the room tonight. 1If there is anyone

here in this room that is not in favor of a cloverleaf for the city of
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Mitchell, would they please raise their hand? Then you take back 150 people

that are interested‘in a Cloverleaf to Mr. Isenbarger and tell him that there
are 150 people here tonight that are in favor of a cloverleaf for the city of
Mitchell. Thank.you.
Ms. Breach:

Thank you Mr. Sachia. This.-meeting is_a&journed. Please folks..drive

careful going home and thanks for coming out.
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317-232-5533

September 15, 1988

Dear Citizen:

Welcome to the Indiana Department of Highways (IDOH) design hearing on the
proposed widening of SR 37 between CR 1000 South in Mitchell and U.S. 50 in
Bedford. The entire 7.17 mile project is located in Lawrence County.

The purpose of this public hearing is to explain the project to interested
persons and receive their comments on it. There are several ways that your
comments can be presented.

1) They can be presented orally during the public hearing. You may do
this by signing up on the speakers' schedule located on the table with
the hand-out material. Or simply ralse your hand after the list of
speakers has been completed.

2) They may be handed in on one of the comment sheets we have prov1ded
These are also on the table with the brochures.

3) They may be mailed to us during the next two weeks. All written
comments received by September 30, 1988 will be included in the
transcript just as if the concerns had been mentioned here tonight.
The comment sheets are also self-addressed tri-fold mailers and may
be sent to us by putting a stamp on the outside and dropping it in
the mail.

. All comments we receive will be investigated and answered in the final
design study report.

The plans, design study report and environmental documents have been
available for your review at the following locations:

1) IDOH Public Hearings Office, Room 1105, Indiana State Office
Building, 100 No;th Senate Avenue, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249.

2) Mayor's Office, 1102 16th Street, Bedford, Indiana 47421.

3) Road Development Office, Indiana Department Of Highways District,
Vincennes, Indiana 47591.

An Equal Opportunity Employer




That information, along with the verbatim transcript of the public hearing when
it is completed, will remain available for review until the final design study
report is approved or the project withdrawn.

Thank you for your participation in this public hearing. A decision on the
future of this project will be made soon ands/advertised in the legal section of
your local newspapers.
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c. Anyone else who would like to comment

V. Closing remarks - Teresa Parker-Breach



PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE

The proposed widening of SR 37 begins at CR 1000 South in the town of
Mitchell and continues northward for approximately 7.17 miles to U.S. 50 west,
just south of the city of Bedford.

The purpose of this project is to provide a modern highway that will
efficiently and safely serve the transportation needs of south-central Indiana.

NEED

Built in the early 1950's, this highway has had steadily increasing problems
handling traffic. As the population of Lawrence County grew, so did the number
of vehicles trying to use SR 37. This has generated safety problems and
congestion, resulting in an increase in accidents, decreased transportation
efficiency and a general adverse impact on the economic growth of the area.

The existing roadway is insufficient to carry both current and projected volumes
of traffic. The majority of the roadway consists of two ll-foot travel lanes
bordered by deteriorating 4 to 6~-foot shoulders composed of deteriorated
bituminous material and stone.

In 1986 the Average Daily Traffic (ADT) on the section of SR 37 was 9,100
vehicles per day. That figure is anticipated to increase to 12,586 vehicles per
day by the year 2006. Additionally, the 1984 Environmental Assessment indicates
that the sufficiency rating of the project was only 48 - 52 out of a possible
score of 100. This low rating is attributable to capacity deficiencies. The-
highway is simply not capable of handling the amount of traffic using it.

HISTORY

Existing SR 37 was designed and built in the late 1940's and early 1950's.
Much of new SR 37 in this area was constructed on the alignment of old SR 37.
However, a great deal of attention was given to improving the sight-distance
problems experienced on the old highway by straightening the new road as much as
possible. One portion of the roadway ran through the town of Mitchell. New
SR 37 was constructed on a long, gradual curve to bypass the urban area.

On February 2, 1984, a public information meeting was held in Mitchell High
School. A corridor public hearing was held subsequently on November 29, 1984,
also in Mitchell, Indiana. The final environmental document was approved on
April 11, 1985. Although originally funded with a combination of Federal and
State funds, this project was changed to 100% state funds and was placed on the
Accelerated Construction Effort (ACE) list in 1988. Development is expected to
be complete in 1991. The project will then be eligible for competive bid by
contractors.

PROPOSED ALTERNATE

Although several options initially were looked at, Alternate C has been
found to be the most feasible. As proposed, the roadway will be widened to four
12-foot travel lanes with 1ll1-foot paved shoulders and concrete curb and gutters
from the southern end of the project and will continue northward for about 344




feet. Then, the roadway will be widened further to include a 16-foot wide flat
paved median. This section will continue northward for about 2.27 miles. At
this point the median will begin to transition from the 16-foot paved lane to a
50-foot wide grass strip. Typically, the roadway will have four 12-foot driving
lanes, a 50-foot grass median and two 1l1-foot shoulders (10-foot paved.)

Right~turn lanes will be provided for northbound traffic at SR 60 East and
for both north and southbound traffic at the SR 60/Main Street intersection. On
the segment of roadway utilizing the 50-foot grass median, left turn lanes will
be provided at every crossroad crossing of SR 37. The centerline of the widened
roadway will shift from the existing centerline. The direction and the distance
of the shift will vary.

The existing bridge over the CSX Railroad will be used for the dual
northbound lanes of SR 37. A companion structure will be built adjacent to the
west side of the exXisting bridge to accommodate the dual southbound lanes.
Construction on the existing bridge will consist of concrete deck and barrier
railing removal and reconstruction. Like the old bridge, the new structure will
consist of 3 spans (60', 72', 60'). The minimum vertical clearance of both
structures over the railroad will be 21 feet 8 1/4 inches. The new bridge deck
will be an 8 inch thick concrete slab. The roadway will consist of two 12-foot
travel lanes in each direction bordered by 10~foot 8 inch shoulders and concrete
barrier railing. A 16-foot wide median will separate the north and southbound
lanes. A 1 inch open joint will be used to separate the companion bridges.

Access to the roadway will be partially controlled. Although access points
may be consolidated, all residences and businesses which currently have access to
SR 37 will continue to have access to the new dual-lane facility. The
right-of-way will be fenced. However, no fences will be constructed across
residential front yards. Disturbed lawn areas will be sodded and all other areas
will be seeded. '

This project is totally state funded. If the preferred alternate is
selected, the estimated project costs are:

1988 1993
Construction: $ 7,600,000 $ 9,500,000
Preliminary Engineering: 676,520 676,520
Right-0Of-Way: 2,500,000 . 2,500,000
Relocation: 260,000 260,000
Total $11,036,520 $12,936,520.
DETOURS

Traffic on SR 37 will be maintained during construction. However,
reconstruction of county roads at intersections with SR 37 will probably
require that these roads be closed to through traffic. The detours will amount
to less than 2 miles additional travel distance for through traffic.




OTHER ALTERNATES

Alternate A: "Do Nothing." Under this option no improvements would be made
to SR 37. Although it would result in no cost to the state, there would be no
improvement to the facility and therefore would not satisfy the purpose of the
project. However, this alternate will remain available until the design plans
have been finalized. '

Alternate B: Four-lanes with a 50-foot grass median. This alternative
calls for four 12-foot travel lanes with 1ll-foot shoulders (10-foot paved) and a
S0-foot grass median for the entire length of the project. The alignment would
flip~flop from side to side of the existing pavement to use as much of the
existing roadway as possible. However, the clear zone requirements of this
project would require that more homes and businesses be acquired for the project
under this alternate. Therefore, it was discarded.

RIGHT-OF-WAY AND LAND ACQUISITION

The right-of-way on the preferred alternate varies from 125 to 365 feet in
width. To accommodate this, approximately 91.5 acres of new permanent
right-of-way will have to be acquired. The current uses of this land are as
follows: 33.86 acres are residential; 12.31 acres are light industrial and
commercial, 35.85 acres are agricultural, 8.24 acres are wooded and "old field"
and 1.25 acres are from institutional land (Marion Township Fire Station.)

Approximately 28 residences, four businesses, two trailers, the Marion
Township Volunteer Fire Department, ten garages and sheds, and 14 signs may need
to be acquired. Relocation benefits may be available to residents. Brochures
on the relocation and the land acquisition processes have been provided.

About 3.2 acres of temporary right-of-way will also be necessary for drive
construction, building removal, and slope grading. However, this right-of-way
will be returned to the present owner after construction is completed.
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effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.
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) Room 1101, State Office Building
317-232-5533
November 2, 1988

Dick C. Verheul

Carpenter Body Works, Inc.
1500 West Main Street
Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Verheul:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed project has generated much interest from area residents. Concerns of
the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Sk T Cntin

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1Im

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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(Attach additional sheets if necessary)
State Form 26547 (6-87)

" An izqual Opportunity Employer



INDIANAPOLIS

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS N Tisie_~#/ Room 1101, State Office Building
100 North Senate Avenue TSSEEEE 317-232-5533
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

November 2, 1988

Steven L. Robertson
Route 2, Box 538A
Springville, Indiana 47462

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Robertson:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed project has generated much interest from area residents. Concerns of
the area residents are very strong and duly noted..

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.
Very truly yours,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer




RECEIVED

AFTER

THE

PUBLIC HEARING




O .wN&J i %LJ

MJW\‘“ 3y &éopmi‘ |




 INDIANAPOLI

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS o Cigie 7" Room 1101, State Office Building
100 North Senate Avenue 317-232-5533

. . i 46204-2249
Indianapolis, Indiana November 2, 1988

Mr. and Mrs. Ronald L. Terry
Route 2, Box 202
Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 37 Widening from Bedford to
Mitchell in Lawrence County.

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Terry:

Thank you for your letter concerning the proposed project. The widening
.0f SR 37 has generated much interest from area residents. Concerns of the
area residents are very strong and duly noted.

The proposed plans show your property will be affected. If this project
moves forward your place of business and home will have to be located. At
that time you will be contacted by phone to set up an appointment with the
Division of Land Acquisition. Enclosed are brochures that might help you in
preparing questions that you might want answered.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official
transcript and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

N

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kTm

Enclosures

An Equal Opportunity Employer




INDIANAPOLIS

Room 1101, State thce Buxldmg
317-232-5533

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

Goelober 5, 1988

Life Care Affiliates

3580 Keith Street NW

P.O. Box 3480

Cleveland, Tennessee 37320

Attn: Charles E. Jabaley

Re: Request to Purchase Right-of-Way in
Mitchell, Indiana

Dear Mr. Jabaley:

We have received your inquiry concerning the Right-of-Way you are
interested in acquiring and have forwarded it to the Vincennes District
Engineer's Office for further investigation. After completion of the
investigation by the District Office, we will contact you again.

The sale of excess Right-of-Way must also be approved by our
Divisions of Program Development and Design after it is declared surplus
by the District Engineer.

Thank you for your interest in this matter. Feel free to contact
this office if you have further questions.

Respectfully,
Darleen Himmelheber, Supervisor
Property Management Unit

For: John W. Brossart, Chief
Division of Land Acquisition

DMH:1c i”“’ff:g
cc: yfracy Breach (e
Aden Carr
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| Life Care____

A F F T E S

3580 Keith Street N.W./P.O. Box 3480/Cleveland, Tennessee 37320-3480/Telephone (615) 479-5411/Telecopier (615) 478-1688

September 26, 1988

Mr. John W. Brossart, Chief

Division of Land Acquisition

Indiana Department of Highways

100 North Senate Avenue

Division of Land Acquisition - Jackson Building
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

Dear Mr. Brossart:

Enclosed is a comment submitted in connection with the proposed
widening of Highway 37 in Mitchell, Indiana. At the hearing,
representatives of the State suggested the written comment be
submitted and also suggested a letter to you requesting abandonment
of a portion of the existing right-of-way. I have enclosed a copy

~of the plans which show the portion of the highway adjacent to our
property and which indicate the portions of our property which may
encroach upon the right-of-way. Because everyone seemed to think
the existing right-of-way was more than adequate, they did not think
abandonment of a portion of the right-of-way to us would be a
problem. I would appreciate your suggestions or comments.

Sincerely,

it
[N

Charles E.

oy

Enclosure E;fkf SEP 2 7 1993

N
— b
[PRUE -

cc: Mr. Forrest L. Preston
Mr. David J. Gooch H
Mr. Dick Wager § e :
Mr. Bill McNiff Rt e



INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

The purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public-a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING
DATE: 9-15-88 PROJECT OR SUBJECT: _widening of SR-37

NAME: (Please print) Mitchell Medical Investors, Ltd. .
ADDRESS: 3570 Keith Street, N.W., P.0. Box 3480 (37320-3480), Cleveland, TN

37312 / ‘s 0
SIGNATURE: _ Forrest L. prestoanf(vﬁwZZ\,
COMMENTS: (Please print or type) See attached Exhibit "A".

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

State Form 26547 (6-87)

An EFrueal Onnnetuinttv Fmnlaver



EXHIBIT "A"

This comment is submitted in connection with the design hearing by
the Indiana Department of Highways on the proposed widening of SR-37
between CR-1000 South in Mitchell and US-50 in Bedford. Mitchell
Medical Investors, Ltd. ("Mitchell") owns a nursing home adjacent to
the right-of-way of SR-37. While reviewing the plans for the
proposed highway, Mitchell learned that, based upon the plans for
the new highway, the access drive to the nursing home, a portion of
the nursing home parking lot and a few feet of a recent addition to
the nursing home, may be located on the existing right-of-way for
SR-37. When Mitchell acquired this property in 1985, it obtained a
survey and title insurance policy which does not disclose the
right-of-way. Mitchell is continuing to investigate the possibility
no problem exists, but is submitting this comment based on the
assumption the highway plans are correct.

At the hearing, representatives of Mitchell spoke with Frank
Newkirk, Tracy Breach and Robert D. Fisher. Mitchell would like to
formally request an investigation of the potential problems
disclosed by the plan and to determine whether it is feasible for
the right-of-way to be abandoned to Mitchell because the
encroachments by the drives have existed for a number of years and,
based upon the discussions at the hearing, the right-of-way is not

necessary for the either the existing highway or the proposed new
highway. Also, the property immediately to the north of Mitchell's
property has right-of-way substantially 1less than the existing
right-of-way which is adjacent to the Mitchell property. Apparently,
these variations resulted from the way the property was acquired
when the original road was constructed. However, the difference in
the amount of right-of-way, which is substantial, justifies
Mitchell's position that the right-of-way adjacent to its property
is excess, and could be abandoned without any harm to the State.

In addition to questions concerning the right-of-way, Mitchell would
like to request that no fence be built along the portion of the
right-of-way which adjoins its property. Like many businesses,
Mitchell caters to the public and, particularly because of the
emotions involved in entering a nursing home, Mitchell promotes a
sense of openness and freedom, both to attract residents and to
satisfy their needs once they are admitted. To achieve that goal,
Mitchell invests substantial time and money in keeping its physical
assets in first class condition, including the grounds around its
facilities. To foster a feeling of welcomeness and to make it more
practical for Mitchell to maintain the grounds around its nursing
home, it would like to request that no fence be constructed adjacent
to its property.
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INDIANAPOLIS

Room 1101, State Oftice Building
317-232-5533

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249
; : November 2, 1988

Life Care Affiliates

ATTN: Charles E. Jabaley
3580 Keith Street NW

P.0. Box 3480

Cleveland, Tennessee 37320

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Jabaley:

We have received a copy of your letter concerning the proposed widening
of State Road 37. The proposed project has generated much interest from area
residents. Concerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your Tetter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,/7

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kTm

An Equal Opportunity Employer



22 CITY OF MITCHELL

Home of
Persimmon Festival PHONE 849-2151 Spring Mill State Park
MITCHELL,INDIANA 47446

September 30, 1988

Indiana Department of Highways
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204-2249

Dear Gentlemen:
As Mayor of the City of Mitchell, Indiana, I have had an
opportunity to review the plans of the Hwy. 37 project which

passes on the west side of our city.

After a review of these plans I have several items that I
believe should be considered by you at this time.

At the present time, the City of Mitchell is negotiating
with various people for an industrial development on certain
property held in the name of Wesley Wason and Julie Favorite
which lies in substantial part just to the north of the city
limits of Mitchell, Indiana.

I would specifically ask the State Highwéy to consider
developing the road with the center cross over lane going to the
north edge of that property.

We believe that this property may very well offer the area
of growth for the City of Mitchell and we believe that this cross
over lane could be placed there at. the present time and would
help for the future growth and safety of the City of Mitchell.

Secondly, with regard to a large cut which is anticipated
on Hwy. 37 near the junction with Hancock Avenue to the east and
County Road 850 S to the west, I would suggest an overpass system
instead of the cuts which are now anticipated.

I believe that the overpass would not be extremely expensive
given that number of parcels that will have to be bought under
the present plans and the excavation in rock that will have to be
done. This would allow for the area to be much safer. This is
specifically important when you recognize that a school is only
one block to the east of this intersection and there are a large

MOVE TOMITCHELL ... APROGRESSIVE CITY




of number of school buses traveling this area everyday.

The third issue involves a company which I own personally
and these comments are personal in nature. At the present time
there are driveways both to the north and south of the present
office of Hancock Construction and also one at the north of the
office complex which enters into an area in which we are getting
ready to build a substancial new building.

I would greatly appreciate it if the new driveways could be
of the same size and type as we presently use. At the present
time we have over 25 semi-trucks using the entrances and exits
daily and also a large amount of heavy equipment goes in and out
of this area. We believe that these are needed for the safety of
the people traveling on Hwy. 37 as well the employees of Hancock
Construction Co. and Hancock Construction Co. Inc.

These driveways will become even more important because as
the new building is constructed we are adding new employees and I
am concerned about their personal safety in entering and leaving
the premises.

If you have any questions at all, please don't hesitate to
contact me.

Sincerely,

Hancock
M yor, CltY of Mitchell

CWB/dmf

SENT CERTIFIED MAIL/RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED



INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue TR 317-232-5533
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

- November 2, 1988

The Honorable Jerry L. Hancock
Mayor of Mitchell

11th and Oak Street

Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mayor Hancock:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37 in
Mitchell. The proposed project has generated much interest from area resi-
dents. Concerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kIm

An Equal Opportunity Employer




SR —
' INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
. 1101 State Office Building

100 N. Senate Avenue

o , ,év Indianapolig =In(%12f620 /@ ,,eh ol
We welcome your comments: et = W&ﬂ/»ﬁ&& mu

0

—2044//'2-- D &bb

NAME |

PR Il Dox 255 |

STREET ADDRESS

Bed. Ford Tw. LT7Y2/

CITY STATE ZIP CODE




INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue ' = 317-232-5533

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249
November 2, 1988

Ronnie D. Cobb
Route 11, Box 255
Bedford, Indianz 47421

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Cobb:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed - improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Wo%ﬁ’/w

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

An Equal Opportunity Employér
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INDIANAPOLIS

Room 1101, State Ottice Building

317-232-5533

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

‘I'he purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING |
DATE: 09/15/88 PROJECT OR SUBJECT: _Hwy. 37 Project # ST-095-3
NAME: (Please print) Christopher W. Burton

ADDRESS: 301 Stone City Bank Bldg.

Bedf ord%/
SIGNATURE: / //

COMMENTS: (Please print or type] _See attached.

B QER 1 Q G0E

swmievaatae -y E

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Fqual Opportnoity Fmployer



BURTON & HICKMAN

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
301 STONE CITY BANK BLDG.
BEDFORD, INDIANA 47421

CHRISTOPHER W. BURTON TELEPHONE (812) 275-3326 DONALD ]. HICKMAN
FAX: (812) 2750747
September 28, 1988

Indiana Department of Highways
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204-2249

RE: Project #ST-095-3
For Robert J. Burton

Dear Gentlemen:

I am writing on behalf of my father, Robert J. Burton, with
regard to the above highway project.

In reviewing this project, we have two areas of concern which we
believe needs to be addressed by the Department of Highways.
Initially, my father owns the real estate on the southwest corner
of Hwy. 37 and 60 West which consists of land being developed as
well as a Druther's Restaurant at this time. In the plans as
presented, we understand that there would be no access to our
property from Hwy. 37.

In reviewing the result of these plans, we believe that this will
dramatically to our detriment effect the value and the future use
of our land. We are specifically requesting that the plans be
modified to replace and allow for two driveways onto our property
from Hwy. 37 north of the present Druther's Restaurant Property.

A second issue involves a home owned by my father which sets
approximately 50 feet south of the intersection of Hwy. 37 and
Hwy. 60 East. In the present drawings there has been a dramatic
modification of the driveway which would allow for a temporary
right-of-way to construct a driveway which would in cut in front
of the house and would not allow direct straight access to the
highway straight lined from the garage of the home. We believe
that this 1is unnecessary and will have a significant impact on
the value of the home. We are specifically asking that the
driveway be left as is to go straight from the garage onto Hwy.
37.

We would ask that these concerns be placed in the transcript and
that every effort be made to accommodate these reasonable
requests. We understand and support the widening of Hwy. 37 and




Indiana Department of Highways
September 28, 1988

Page 2

we believe that the modifications and requests which we have made
will not wunduly impact the planning or construction and will
allow us not to suffer significant economic hardship which would
ultimately have to be borne by the State of Indiana.

Sincerely,

CWB/tm




Room 1101, State thce Bunldmg
317-232-5533

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

November 2, 1988

Christopher W. Burton

Burton & Hickman

Attorneys At Law

301 Stone City Bank Building
Bedford, Indiana 47421

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Burton:
Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The

proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hear1ng and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

L b F e

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer



Corporate Office:
8126 Castleton Rd.

Indianapoiis, IN 46250

1-317-849-5832
Offices:

Springfield, Hlinois
Charleston, West Virginia

Beam, Longest and Neff, Inc. Consulting Engineers

September 28, 1988

Mrs. Teresa D. Parker-Breach
Hearings Examiner - Public Hearings
Division of Public Affairs

Indiana Department of Highways

100 North Senate Avenue Room 1105
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

.Re: Project No. ST-095-3( )
S.R. 37: County Road 100 South
to U.S. 50 (West)
Lawrence County, Indiana

. Dear Mrs. Parker-Breach:

Enclosed please find a copy of a letter which we received on
September 27, 1988 for the referenced project from Applacres,
Inc. in Bedford. Please include this letter in the formal
public testimony/public hearing transcript to be prepared for
the referenced project. This letter will be addressed in '
the Final Design Study Report.

Thank you for your cooperation in matters of mutual interest.

Very truly yours,

BEAM, LONGEST & NEFF, INC.

Sppocy 47 lacl

Jeffrey A. Vlach

JAV/sh
Enclosure
xc: File
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RECEIVED| -%
APPLACRE S9 IHC. (‘CP. 2

R. R. 11, Box 2BBA ® Bedford, Indiana 47421 @ Phone 812-279-9721
DAVID BYERS, General Manager
ORCHARD SALES @ 3 Miles South of Bedford on Highway 37

September 24, 1988

Indiana Department of Highways
100 North Senate Avenue ‘‘Johnny Appleseed”’
Room 1101, State Office Building

In@aanapolis Indiana 46204

Dear Sir:

I'm writing in regard to Indiana project ST-095-3, proposed
widening of S.R. 37 from Mitchell to U.S. 50 south of Bedford. The
map on display at the public hearing on September 15, 1988 in
Bedford showed a detailed proposed cross over and driveway entrance
for Applacres. There are times during the summer and fall when

a lot of traffic is entering and leaving our business. To help
get this traffic off and on the highway and in and out of our

parking area, I would like to make two suggestions:

l. It is important that customer*s cars, campers w1th boats,
and large tractor-trailers can go around the back of our market
and exit by the south entrance as they do now. This saves vehicles
from having to turn around in our parking area. We own the
residence south of our market and you have an entrance for it,
(driveway station 411, plus 34). Why not widen this drive to the
right(north) to 40 feet°

2., To help get some of this traffic from the south entrance
to the south-bound lanes, put in another cross over. As cars and
large vehicles leave the the south entrance and they want to go
south, they would have to go north and cross lanes to the cross
over to go south. Why not put in another cross over?

These two suggestions are to allow a reasonable flow of

vehicles in our parking area and around our market and of and
on Highway 37. Please consider our suggestions,

//Ei?/éhs»”’/////

David Byers, Presféint.

cc: Mr, Randy Compton
Beam, Longest and Weff, Inc,

APPLES ® PEACHES ® CIDER ® CHRISTMASTREES ® TEXASCITRUS ® GIFT BOXES



INDIANAPOLIS

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS

100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

November 2, 1988

Applacres, Inc.

David Byers, President
Route 11, Box 288 A
Bedford, Indiana 47421

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Byers:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.
Very truly yours,

B aatd =

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer

Room 1101, State Oftice Building



September 29, 1988

Indiana Department of Highways
1101 State Office Building

100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Gentlemen:

It has come to the attention of the fire service that we had missed
bringing up a very important issue at the meeting held in Bedford,
Indiana earlier this month.

The members of the Marion Township Rural Fire Department would
like to add to the comments that were heard at this meeting. One
item that they feel will be very much needed with the four laneing
of State Road 37 will be the installation of a flashing red light
that will operate when the trucks are leaving the fire station.

We feel that this will be a very critical item for the Indiana
Department of Highways to include in the planning of this
portion of Highway 37. We look forward to working with you in
any way that we can and also look forward to the new highway
which we hope to see in the not too distant future

Thank you,

MARTON TOWNSHIP RURAL FIRE DEPARTMENT

4224« a7/ 4£¢4%7ek¢~—<n,(fz

Don L. Wedgewood, Fire Chief



INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue 317-232-5533
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

November 2, 1988

Don L. Wedgewood, Fire Chief

Marion Township Rural Fire Department
Route 2, Box 316

Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Wedgewood:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

/%f’///x)%%;u

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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INDIANA DEPARTMIENT OF HIGHWAYS =.l8ie Room 1101, State Office Building
100 North Senate Avenue 317-232-5533
Indianapolis. Indiana 46204-2249

‘I'he purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING |
DATE: 9-15-88 . . . _ PROJECT OR SUBJECT: _SF 37 in Laurence Co,
NAME: (Please print) __Ronald L.";Bu.rcham P.E,

ADDRESS: RR 3 Box 293 .
Mitchell, Indiand 47446

SIGNATURE: 2272 2. L _ P,c

COMMENTS: (Please print or type) I live within 400 feet of this proposed

construction and drive the involved road daily, I am glad this project is

progressing and am in favor of it,

The location of this construction project will be in a residential area
throughout most of its length, Many of the residents have small children,

including myself, I am very concerned with the effect the actual construction

will have on the quality of family time at home, My main concerns are dust,

noise, and the complete disruption of our non-school and non-work time at
home, I request that theough the use of special provisions to the contract

the following items be addressed,
1) No work be allowed on Holidays as defined in Section 101,22 Of the 1988

IDOH Standard Specifications.
20 No work be allowed except during daylight hours as defined in 108,04.

3) A1l cquipment must meet the noise levels as established at the time

of manufacturing by the ori~inzl progucer, ie original exhaust equip-

men} and in good repair,

L) A positive plan for dist control mnist be in place and enforced during

construction,

I hope the above will be considered and implemented,

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)
State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Equal Opportunity Emplover



INDIANAPOLIS

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

Room 1101 State thce Bunldmg
© 317-232-5533

November 2, 1988

Ronald L. Burcham, P.E.
Route 3, Box 293
Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Burcham:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hear1ng and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kIm

An Equal Opportunity Employer



INDIANAPOLIS

/' Room 1101, State Office Building

317-232-5533

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

‘I'he purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING o , B
DATE: /. PROJECT OR SUBJECT: Zadina prolec/ S720 95~ 3

NAME: (Please print) e e »d /e //
ADDRESS:_ A A/ ABrx /33
2. 7che//, I/?c//é\?/?a Y2494
SIGNATURE: %W/fwé/
COMMENTS: (Please print or type) _.f Zgree 73] THere needs 7o Se
_ /e b ¢ beZmicr o ), T baff a7 L
de’ T undersZand I w/f/n//a/oa wisd 7o c//'jrurpf So ma Azzvﬂ'gm///\'f_f

g’;gg& 4)4 2&11*@‘9 déﬁa Jhess bivsre S, ZZng /S &/ gbondarne e o~
. 1 f . (/Sf(/

R . . o son” g
v/d a 27 Frr. pe Jived o4 m/y,,@re;cwf
’ anl) 77 e /s
z&ﬁ éa re [(2‘ zfﬁz ed Sguezdé gz'az/g'y,i 22 Sﬁz ge 4! ;&ZZ 2. maé.g 4‘ '/: éz»re
: ; Se ) 7 i Your 4ﬁ
yA avy ara jc. ’7_ ﬁo./

/57)/:1 v Toar aun =3 bome, T gzd‘ggz¢é|4 Lt $4 vou savld Consides
D7l g 72 e é{-[aag 2cr25s 7Zhe gzen Zggzo) wWhere 4‘7 woeldr'T

\ ¢
&4 ; a /y e I | / / ‘P

1 . 8 M

) i,

uch They teoild wan? )T 5 ﬂ;y wicre gqaing 7o ge7 Jheory forre
225:[1 dowh, ﬂvig, Agg{ urov/d Voo éécz 4,é' 4.2 u'rr € [442E

Esanscd Lttt

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Equal Opportunity Employer



INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

November 2, 1988

Bernard Powell
Route 1, Box 133
Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Powell:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and.duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

pln T Gt

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kTm

An Equal Opportunity Employer



Room 1101, State Office Building
317-232.5533

INDIANAPOLIS

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

‘'he purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured yoﬁrbcomments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING ,
DATE: Sept. 15, 1988 PROJECT OR SUBJECT: Highway 37 Mitchell

NAME: (Please print) Merrill E. King-King's Automotive
ADDRESS: PO Box 95 Mitchell, In. L7LL6

e { /’
SIGNATURE: ‘,7%5’%6 G, Lfaen

COMMENTS: (Please print dr type) I anm locateffat the Main St. and 37

intersection. Your plan is to come across the present two lane highway

and take out my business. Of all the businesses in this area, my business

is the only business to come down. The original plan was to add the other

two lanes across the highway, which is just extra parking space for

Carventer Body '“forks.

Your plan, as I understand it, would put at least 1D peonle out of

work as well as a business that has been on this location since 1962. I

am 56 years old and would find it very diffcult to start over again as

well as very expensive.

I would like to meet with an appropriate official here at this

business location to explain my position. If this is not nossible I can

meet where ever. Thank You.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)
State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Equal Opportunity Employer



STATE __oA?)IANA__M

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS NGge/  Room 1101, State Office Building
100 North Senate Avenue ) ’ 317-232-5533
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

November 2, 1988

Merill E. King

King's Automotive

P.0. Box 95

Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
' to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. King:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.
Very truly yours,

 FoodoA B,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer




\ OR35S ';, gt
INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS ‘ Room 1101, State Oftice Building
100 North Senate Avenue 317-232-53533
Indianapolis. Indiana 46204-2249

‘I'he purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING _ .
DATE: _ épr. /S, /988 =% PROJECT OR SUBJECT: HwY. 37 = Mircyew 10 Bevrso

NAME: (Please print)_QAKLEIGH WesTFALL
ADDRESS: KA 1l Box-zoe ' Benrorp IN 4742/

. '

SIGNATURE: (et 7)@%%

COMMENTS: (Please prin(/ or type) The praws swowN AT THE HEARING DID Yer

 Siew E CE oNTD £ o .
WHieH |s itocATED oON THE WEST SiDE OF M/TCHELL, M
WE SoLp £ s KESTAV SPECIFICALL
o] <] & USE I3 CE ON: [HE Z z /3
STAV CONSTRVCTED COMPLETE ECELE LANE HE PYRPOSE
OF THIS RIGHT WAS To INSURE AccEss To THE HIGHWAY AND To PROVIDE
VIVRE DEYELOPER OF THE HEMAMNOER HER'S L
ALREADY BVILT ENTRANCE,
THE PisNs FOR THE HIGHWAY NEEp To BE REVISEp 10 _PRovVIDE. 4
COMMERCIAL TYPE ENTRANCE FRoM THE HIGHWAY T0 THE REMAINDER oF MY

MOTHER'S PROPERTY SOMEWHERE NEAR STATIeN 1l oy THE PLANS.

i otem

L

i pEET————

SEP 29 1988

[BEE
IR

-

(Attach additional sheets if necessary|

State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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INDIANAPOLI

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

November 2, 1988

Oakleigh Westfall
Route 11, Box 206
Bedford, Indiana 47421

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Westfall:

Thank you for your letter concerning the widening of State Road 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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&ETTERS TO THE EDlTOR

Cessnd calls: for' adop.ﬁon of proposal

To the people. of Mntchell and [

those traveling Highway 37
south: :

Just -recently, I have for-

warded to each of our U.S. sen-
ators, - U.S. representatives,
Indxana representatives, gov-
ernor of Indiana, and other de-

',pa_rtments of .importance in- -

~-volved. in the roads and trans-

- portation of Indiana the follow-

ing letter:
Gentlemen:

Reference: Indiana ProJect_
- F-095-3(6)

The State of Indiana is about

" to'let a contract for the final

drawings of plans and engi-

neering for this project. Since

the contract has not been let
yet for the final design of
structures and roadways, let’s
get the enclosed proposal be-
fore the State of Indiana and
the Federal government now
before, not after, the contract
is let. All that has been done, at
this peint, is just the prehml-
naries; now we are running

short ‘of time:to get this pro-

posal accepted.

The proposed project will |

begin just south of State Road

60 at Mitchell, Indiana, and ex- |
tend in a northernly direction

mostly along'_existing align-
ment-and termmate at the east
fork of Whnte Rlver at Bedford,
Indiana.’

The project will be approxi-

mately 7.9 miles—220 feet .

right-of-way minimum, partial
access ‘controlled-type with
two 24-foot pavements separat-
ed by a. 50-foot” median with
safety shoulders onoutside and
inside edges.

However, . they have failed
in one safety factor that is of
great interest ‘to:'myself, oth-
ers, the future: citizens of Mit-
chell and the people traveling
Highway 37 South. We need a
clover leaf for easy and safe
entrance into and exiting out of

Mitchell, Indiana, across the -

new proposed four lane.
- We are not asking for a three
(3). million dollarinstallation

as a total extra estimated cost.
\ . Thanks.

Thé above estlmate s an un-
realistic | estunate

If you.will revmlos-
ed safety sketch proposal you
will note:- M

1. Already in. ex15tence is:
one bridge crossmg over the_
B&O Railroad. 3

2. There will havé' to be one

bridge added to take care of

four-lamng over the B&O Raxl-
road. .

3. Use natural terram as an’
asset.

4. With the two brldges in:

: place and properly designed;
- all that is required is the clover.
. leaf design for the flow of traf-- :

fic into and out of - Mltchell In-
diana.

5. Access roads are already
in place and existing for enter-
ing and leaving Mitchell, Indi-

. ana, on old State Road 37..

6. Propose a tight clover
leaf such' as" in ‘ Indianapolis,
Indiana, where Highway 67
traffic enters and exits to 1-465.

7. Nothing elaborate—but

for safety it will work for' cross
traffic.

|

l

If you. agree, please send a
postcard or letter to.me for .
further evidence of your sup-

_port.

‘Just thxs past; Saturday,
Aprnl 19, how many of you were '
aware of a serious accident at
the local stoplight? Those of
-you that were at’ ‘the scene can
witness the 1mportance of an
easy. access ‘into and' exiting

" out of Mitchell across Highway

8. Estimate extra cost for )

clover leaf less bridges in the
contract would be $400,000.00 to
$500,000.00 at the most. :

37. What’s going to' happen

when we get a four lane?
Think - Inquire  Act
With the increase in volume
of traffic in the coming years,
I it could save your life, your
* friends, your neighbors, your
- children, or those we don’t
. know. ‘
4 Let’s lay aside our own sel-
ti fish interests and look to the
: future transportation needs of
" Mitchell and southérn Indiana.
. Please help, send those let-
ters now. Reference Indiana
Project F-095-3(6).
Thanks,
Don Cessna

9. We are only talking about
2,200 feet to 2,500 feet more °

" pavement than estimated,
10. If let in-contract, design '

price per lineal foot would be

much cheaper figure, $1,000, .
000 per mile + 5,280 = $189.39 |

per foot x 2,500 feet = $473,.

475.00. A fairly cheap price for
just one life it might save, let

alone the personal injuries, -

suffering, and property loss. -
Please contact and alert the
Federal Highway Administra-
tion, the U.S. Department of
Transportation, ‘the Indiana
Department of Highways—
“Location Engineer”’ Division
of Location and Environment
and Hearing Examiner, and all
other departments necessary.
Help Help Help

Urgent, act now. Please read

and study the enclosures care- -

fully for further reference and -

retain as they are self-explana-
tory in layman S language

i)

|
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INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

November 2, 1988

Donald H. Cessna
8th & Qak Street
Mitchell, Indiana 47446

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. Cessna:
Thank you for your letter and other materials concerning the widening of

State Road 37. The proposed .improvement has generated much interest from area
residents. Concerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:kTm

An Equal Opportunity Employer



INDIANA

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis. Indiana 46204-2249

'The purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity -
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING " »
DATE: September 15, '°PROJECT OR SUBJECT: ___F-095-3
NAME: (Please print) William C. and Janet T. Phillips
ADDRESS:____R.R. 11 Box 254A . Bedford, IN _ 47421

AR 4 A o
SIGNATURE: ‘

rd

COMMENTS: (Please print or type) Please re-evaluate the availability
of housing in the Mitchell area. All'of the construction on this

proiject occurs south of the White River. All residents involved,

even if they have a Bedford address as we do (R.R. 11), are in the

Mitchell Community School Corporation area. Speaking for ourselves,

we wish our children to continue at the Mitchell Schools. Therefore,

we must relocate south of the White River. In the last two years

since you did the housing availability studies, there has been an

influx of families to this county from Massena, New York. A General

Motors plant closed and workers there were offered employment at

the Central Coundry G.M. Plant in Bedford. A large number of these

new families chose to settle in the Mitchell School District.

Suitable housing has become both scarce and expensive. Local realtors

have stated that property values of homes on the market have increased

at least 5% due to the sudden increase in population. Homes that

had been on the market for a long time with no buyer interest are

now being sold simply because they are some of the only homes

available. There is a definite shortage of 3 bedroom homes at this

time. When school opened this past August, there were approximately

70 new children enrolled in the elementary schools alone whose

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)
State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Fqual Opportunity Employer




families had moved to the MCS district over the summer. All are
living south of the White River. There was also an increase in
students at both the Junior High and High School. The families
had relocated to the Mitchell area from other parts of Indiana and
the U.S., besides Massena, New York. We are simply asking you

to be fair and jpst when doing the relocation appraisals and time
limits for moviné us from our homes. Due to the construction
right-of-way, there will be many families suddenly looking for new

homes in an area that at this time has little property to offer.
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INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS
100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis. Indiana 46204-2249

317-232-5533

‘The purpose of public involvement is to insure that an opportunity is afforded for
effective participation by all interested persons. It also provides the public a full opportunity
for presenting views on each location and/or design features being considered.

Be assured your comments will be made part of the official transcript when submitted
within 2 weeks from the hearing date.

HEARING
DATE: | PROJECT OR SUBJECT:

NAME: (Please print) ‘WikMam Phillips
ADDRESS: ¢ Route[ 11 Box 254 A
' \

Bedfprd. Indiana 47421

SIGNATURE: M%m_@/;% | ng/ 7 A

COMMENTS: (Please print or type)

ptember 15, 1988 ST-095-3

) e . 3 h . b -l - - s
We al'© T TUUTOUILIIIY O Luldl DIy=uott Ui OUdr |SRGATIOASH) QUL SRRV LTS QUi Y 91T R QUAW AU b pu e I eap L 9]

hd b h T W - 1.1 = 'Li. =4 . > o
tlIIIE. 1L woulll DT TUUINUINITCAOT Iy i Tsado TOTT 1OUT US CU UM wilcel & e

1D o o Y - | hY A . - . 1 LBA LT
are- (rIEedsSe See attachea map ) A st Ime ., we— oW 1 ere— Mt 1o

that borders on highway 37. The proposed new right of way would take

more than half of our land. Our home 1s situated on the only high

level spot - as 1ndicated by the topographical Iines. The small area

of Tand remaining to us 1s the lowest Spot on our property. Water

collects there. This area 1Is on the edge of a sink hole owned by our

neighbor. Attempting to fiIl 1n the area seems improbable.

Everything washes 1Into the sink hole — natural drainage.

SEp 2 671538

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)
State Form 26547 (6-87)

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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NDIANAPOLIS

INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS &£ Room 1101, State Oftice Building
100 North Senate Avenue == 317-232-5533

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

November 2, 1988

William C. and Janet T. Phillips
Route 11, Box 254 A
Bedford, Indiana 47421

Re: SR 35 Widening from Bedford
to Mitchell, in Lawrence County

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Phillips:

Thank you for your letters and map concerning the widening of SR 37. The
proposed improvement has generated much interest from area residents. Con-
cerns of the area residents are very strong and duly noted.

We are accumulating data from the public hearing and will be attempting
to arrive at possible solutions that will be in the best interest of all.
Your letter of comments and concerns will be made part of the official tran-
script and answered in the final Design Study Report.

Again, thank you for taking time to express your concerns.

Very truly yours,

/%%w%é’z}v)

Stephen L. Catron
Hearings Examiner

SLC:k1m

An Equal Opportunity Employer



AREA
CHAMBER
OF
COMMERCE

September 19, 1988

Mr. John Isenbarger

Indiana Department of Highways
100 N. Senate Avenue

Room 1101

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2249

Dear Mr. Isenbarger:

I would 1like to take this time to express my delight in the
presentation and video made by Todd Glenn and David Cepenhaver.

Not only was the video done with the community in mind, it was also
done very well. I found Todd and David to be most helpful,
informative and professional.

I will be showing the video to the Board of Directors at the next
meeting; Tuesday September 20th, and I am sure they will feel the
same way I do. '

The Indiana Department of Highway's concern for a much needed four
lane in our area is greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Ctere Bowd.

Adeler Rowden
Executive Director

AB/mn

~ Phone 812 - 275-4493 BEDFORD, INDIANA 47421




OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
JOHN A, WILLIAMS BEDFORD. INDIANA 47421

CITY OF BEDFORD

1102 16TH STREET

B812) 279-6555

September 16, 1988

Mr. Jack Isenbarger

Indiana Department of Highways
State Office Building

. 100 North Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Dear Jack:

I would 1like to commend Todd Glenn and David Copenhaver for an
excellent job videotaping, as well as the rest of the people who
conducted last night's meeting at the National Guard Armory. The
video heiped in the overall understanding for the people in
attendance. .

I thought the meeting went really well. There was a good
turnout. We appreciate all the assistance that the Highway
Department is giving us.

Sincerely yours,

7 Williams, Mayor
City of Bedford
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